
Question and Answers for 18PSX0050

Questions Answers

1

For the Connecticut Department of Transportation Automated Vehicle Location 

(AVL), Maintenance Decision Support System (MDSS) – Integrated Mobile 

Observations (IMO) System Request for Proposal #18PSX0050, would 

Connecticut DOT entertain RFP partial responses? For example, a response that 

would only cover the GPS/ AVL portion of the RFP?

The RFP is seeking a fully functional IMO solution. All proposals will 

be rated based on the proposals meeting  the Selection Criteria and 

Submittal Requirements as composed in the RFP. Vendors are 

encouraged to partner with an MDSS provider to fulfill the 

requirements of the RFP. 

2

Using the pavement condition and environmental prediction information, the 

MDSS shall provide decision support guidance to winter road maintenance 

practitioners and the guidance shall include information related to treatment 

options (e.g., plow, deice, anti-ice, etc.), timing of application, location of 

application, and amount of application) based on current and predicted weather 

conditions. 

QUESTION: Can Connecticut DOT provide the number of plow routes this 

information must be provided?

There are currently 365 plow routes. Please refer to Attachment 6: 

2017-2018 Snow Plow Routes for a map of current snow plow 

routes.

3

Using the pavement condition and environmental prediction information, the 

MDSS shall provide decision support guidance to winter road maintenance 

practitioners and the guidance shall include information related to treatment 

options (e.g., plow, deice, anti-ice, etc.), timing of application, location of 

application, and amount of application) based on current and predicted weather 

conditions. 

QUESTION: Will there be a phased approach for the number of plow routes 

added to the MDSS?

Yes.  See RFP document, Page 11-13, B. Implementation Plan for 

phasing. 

4

All forecasts provided by the Contractor will become the property of CTDOT. 

CTDOT may, at its discretion, share the forecast with other agencies as 

appropriate. A unique forecast shall be provided for each localized area/route.

QUESTION: Can CTDOT confirm the forecasts will only be shared with agency 

within Connecticut and not provided to 3rd parties without written approval 

from the successful bidder?

CTDOT will share the real-time forecasts with other State Agencies. 

CTDOT will not share the real-time forecasts with other private 3rd 

parties unless approved by the successful bidder. CTDOT may share 

historical forecast data with other 3rd parties for evaluation and 

reporting purposes.

5

Forecasts shall be displayed hourly for 48 hours and daily for 10 days. 

QUESTION: Are the hourly forecasts through 48 hours also expected year round 

or are those expected to be similarly limited to Nov-Apr like the MDSS 

tools/recommendations?

The hourly forecasts are required from November 1st to April 30th.



6

The MDSS shall generate weather forecasts for zones or regions around the State 

as identified by the user (e.g., forecast zones, maintenance zones, etc.). 

QUESTION:  Can CTDOT provide additional information regarding these 

forecasts?  Format?

Refer to Attachment 4: Weather Zone Map for additional 

information about CTDOT weather zones. Specific forecasts are 

required for each weather zone. See Exhibit A Page 32, 5., D. 

Weather Forecast Products for additional information.

7
QUESTION: Due to the length of requirements and to provide CTDOT with the 

most complete response can the due date of proposals be moved back 1 week?

The RFP due date is extended to Friday June 15, 2018 at 2 PM 

Eastern Time.  

8 QUESTION: Can CTDOT confirm there is no page limit to the proposer’s response?

There is no page limit for the proposals.  However, as per the RFP 

section "Submittal Requirements", Proposers are advised that, 

"Proposers must provide all requested information in as concise a 

manner as possible." Overly long submittals will be reflected in the 

scoring.

9

The referenced VMT Inventory spreadsheet does not list type of spreader 

controllers utilized by CTDOT.  Could this information be provided as well as any 

interface devices (ELA, ATS, etc.) devices currently utilized by CTDOT

CTDOT uses EZ Spread Spreadsmart controls. CTDOT owns various 

makes, models and age of WMT. 

10

This is a very large drive relative to the amount of data being stored over a 48 

hour period.  Is it acceptable for the vendor to provide calculations of data 

storage requirements and then provide a solid-state drive capable of storing this 

data for this time period?

The 256 GB requirement is based on CTDOT's interest in having 

excess data storage to support potential future system expansion.  

Proposers should clearly identify the data storage being offered. As 

per Requirement 2.C.V., "The Contractor shall demonstrate that the 

minimum data storage capacity is sufficient for storage of system 

data over extended periods of loss of communications connectivity 

greater than or equal to at least 48 hours of observation data."

11
The specified dimensions produce a 10” diagonal dimension.  Would a 5” x 9” 

(10.3” diagonal) display screen be acceptable?  
This is acceptable.

12

The CTDOT RFP agrees with the camera manufacturer’s Technical Specification, 

but the manufacturer’s data sheet and technical manual do not show support 

for: 60 fps, Lens Distortion Compensation, dehumidification unit, or External I/O 

Terminals.  Is the specified camera acceptable without these features?

 The Exhibit A specifications provided are minimum requirements. 

13
Section 2.7.4 requires that the Network Interface be via an RJ-45 connector, 

rather than an M12 connector.  Which connector style is required?
M 12 connector is required.

14
LTE Advanced Cat 6 has a maximum upload transfer rate of 50 Mbps.  Is 50 Mbps 

acceptable?

The modem throughput rates shall meet (max): 300 Mbps down, 150 

Mbps up as specified for possible future use. LTE Advanced Cat 6 

cable shall be provided as specified.



15

Section 2.9.14 requires the Communications Equipment to support Wi-Fi, but the 

Antenna Requirements (Section 2.9.16) does not include a Wi-Fi antenna.  Is the 

modem required to support Wi-Fi and, if so, what system functions are to be 

supported over Wi-Fi?

The Communications Equipment is required to support WiFi for 

potential future use. No WiFi antenna or WiFi functionality is 

anticipated as part of this current project scope.

16

Could CTDOT provide the budget for this project? There are some very expensive 

components specified and it would be important for prospective bidders to 

understand that CTDOT has adequate budget to support this project

CTDOT is responsible for the project funding and is aware of the 

components specified.

17

Are respondents permitted to provide two responses?  If so can the vendor 

provide two pricing sheets, one for each offer and reference the deviations from 

Attachment 2?  If not, how should the vendor provide an alternative offer?

Alternate proposals are not allowed. The RFP is seeking a fully 

functional IMO solution. All proposals will be rated based on the 

Selection Criteria and Submittal Requirements in the RFP. Proposers 

may offer options that  enhance functionality as a separate 

attachment to the cost proposal.  Any options must be fully detailed. 

18 Could CTDOT please provide the scoring criteria and method for this RFP.

Please refer to the RFP section "Selection Criteria" on page 21 of the 

RFP, and " Submittal Requirements" on page 24 of the RFP, which 

describes the selection method and criteria in order of relative 

importance.

19
Panic buttons have not been mentioned – does CTDOT have these currently 

deployed, do they expect them to be deployed as part of this RFP?

Panic buttons have not been deployed as part of this scope.  

However, the capability to generate exception reports based on 

input-based exceptions is required functionality to support potential 

future system expansion.

20

Can a list of the trucks that will receive equipment in the pilot, phase 1, and 

phase 2 installations be provided with the following information: Truck make, 

model, year; Spreader controller make and model; Plow blades (front, left, right, 

under, tow);Installed sensors

CTDOT' s inventory of trucks in Attachment 8 is the only information 

that can be provided at this time. CTDOT owns various makes, 

models and age of WMT. CTDOT uses EZ Spread Spreadsmart 

controls.

21

Can CTDOT confirm that the line items in tables 1 ,2, 4, and 5 look to represent a 

unit price? For items that bundle both material equipment and labor (for 

instance support + hosting costs per vehicle), should the contractor try to split 

those costs out, or simply leave as material costs?

For each item, the Proposer shall split out material, labor, and 

equipment costs, which should then be summed together for a Total 

Price per Item. 



22

In Table 8, labor rates appear as fixed for the entire 5 year contract. Is this the 

intent, so that a blended expected 5 year rate should be used over the life of the 

contract, or should each years rate be listed as a separate line item?

The hourly rates should be firm and fixed for five (5) years.  

23

It appears that travel costs will be reimbursed at direct rates, with limits on 

meals, and that the travel cost estimates are solely for budgetary purposes, 

please confirm? Or, is the budgetary number a cap on the expected directly 

expensed costs?

All additional expenses are the responsibility of the Contractor and 

must be incorporated in their proposal.  Travel costs will not be 

reimbursed as a direct expense. Table 6 from exhibit B is removed to 

reflect this. 

24

With Phase 3 being optional work with a yet to be decided schedule and 

implementation, it would appear that a date could not yet be assigned for the 

assessment of penalties. Please confirm if this penalty should be stricken or 

modified.

The penalties will reamin as described in the RFP Document. The 

Phase 3 penalty date and penalty costs may be revised during the 

negotiations phase of the RFP process.

25
Please confirm that penalty delays caused by CTDOT delay will be moved back 

the amount of the CTDOT delay.

Completion date penalties that are directly caused by CTDOT will be 

waived or adjusted.   CTDOT will notify the Contractor in writing of 

completion date penalty changes.

26

If the contractor plans to develop a requested feature for the project that will 

fully comply with the requirement, but might not be ready day 1 of the 

deployment, how should that be represented as a response code?

The Proposer should provide alternate language to which they 

would fully comply and mark the requirement with code "CM" - 

Complies with Modified Requirement.

27
Please confirm if the goal is for 99.9% uptime or 99.9999% uptime, as the 

increase in reliability can have some cost consequences for budgetary purposes.
As per Exhibit A, system availability shall meet or exceed 99.9%.  

28 Please define "road contamination accumulation".
"Road contamination accumulation" shall be defined as the snow 

depth amount for treated snow.

29 Are separate confidence levels required for a), b) and c)? Separate confidence levels are preferred, but not required.



30

In Section 5.B.IV on Page 32, "The system must support the FHWA Pavement 

Recommendation Rules of Practice regime as the default treatment 

recommendations for specific weather situations." Which of the best practices 

should be used as the default for Connecticut DOT's MDSS - FHWA Pavement 

Recommendation Rules of Practice or CTDOT Snow & Ice Guidelines?

CTDOT Snow & Ice Guidelines should be used as the default.  For 

specific weather situations not covered by the CTDOT Snow & Ice 

Guidelines, the FHWA Pavement Recommendation Rules of Practice 

shall be used as the default.

31 Which parameters must be included in the Real-time MDSS data API?

Per Exhibit A, 6.A.VI, the real-time MDSS  data feed must include 

estimated pavement condition information for all configured CTDOT 

roadway segments.  Proposers should note any additional 

parameters and information offered by their real-time data feed.

32

It appears that the RFP specifications are geared to a specific vendor.   Is CTDOT 

committed to implementing all system features as specified or will alternate 

approaches be considered?

CTDOT has adopted a vendor-neutral approach to this solicitation, 

and alternate approaches that provide desired functionality will be 

considered.  As described in Attachment 2, "CTDOT recognizes that 

that there is likely no one system that can meet all requirements. 

This is a “best value” RFP, looking for the integrated solution that 

provides the best combination of technical quality, price, and other 

evaluation criteria."

33 Will CTDOT accept proposals that provide partial functionality?

The RFP is seeking a fully functional IMO solution. All proposals will 

be rated based on the proposals meeting  the Selection Criteria and 

Submittal Requirements as composed in the RFP. Vendors are 

encouraged to partner with an MDSS provider to fulfill the 

requirements of the RFP.  

34 Does this imply that forecasts should not update unless users select to do so?  

Given that treatment recommendations may change based on 

updated forecast information, it is important that users be notified 

when updates are available and when they will be loaded for use in 

generating revised recommendations.  Alternate methods of 

providing notification and managing/recording treatment 

recommendations will be considered.

35
In what areas does MDSS software need to comply with the NTCIP standard 

1204?

Primarily, it is intended that the MDSS software can interface with 

Environmental Sensor Stations (e.g. RWIS) using a standard 

communications protocol.

36
Configuration by files seems to describe an MDSS which is deployed at each 

workstation.  Is a deployed MDSS what is being described?

The intent is that the MDSS software may be designed to be 

configurable to support any user-defined region in Connecticut and 

for any road routes identified by the user, for which the user has 

provided the necessary input data.

37 Do CTDOT's RWIS report snow, frost and ice depth in inches today? CTDOT's RWIS do not provide amounts of precipitation



38 Do CTDOT's RWIS report blowing snow (yes/no) today? CTDOT's RWIS do not provide blowing precipication

39
Is this requesting a different expiration time for display of one weather 

observation location versus another?

This is requesting that different observation products have 

configurable expiration times, not different weather observation 

locations.

40 What are examples of plan-view graphics?
This would refer to providing roadway information using a view of 

the roadway from above.

41

Many RFP sections share similar, in some cases exact language also found in the 

MAINTENANCE DECISION SUPPORT SYSTEM (MDSS) FUNCTIONAL SPECIFICATION 

TEMPLATE

AND PROCUREMENT GUIDANCE document (http://www.aurora-

program.org/pdf/200403report.pdf  or 

http://www.ops.fhwa.dot.gov/weather/best_practices/1024x768/transform_par

am2.asp?xslname=pub.xsl&xmlname=publications.xml&keyname=537).  These 

documents provide "guidance to state Department of Transportation (DOT) 

personnel preparing and evaluating specifications for weather forecasting 

services that include capabilities similar to those found in the Federal Highway 

Administration’s

(FHWA) prototype Maintenance Decision Support System (MDSS) and the Pooled 

Fund MDSS (PF-MDSS)."  By using sections out of this document in the RFP, does 

this imply a CTDOT preference for the FHWA prototype or the PF-MDSS?

CTDOT has adopted a vendor-neutral approach to this solicitation, 

and alternate approaches that provide desired functionality will be 

considered. Requirements were drawn from a variety of sources, 

identifying desired functionality.

42

If a State Department of Transportation is a contributing member to the Pooled 

Fund MDSS (PF-MDSS), does this contribution allow access to an MDSS which is 

described in the Maintenance Decision Support System (MDSS) Functional 

Specification Template and Procurement Guidance document referenced above?

CTDOT has requirements that are unique to the State of Connecticut 

and we do not wish to go with a generic solution.  CTDOT has 

adopted a vendor-neutral approach to this solicitation, and alternate 

approaches that provide desired functionality will be considered.  As 

described in Attachment 2, "CTDOT recognizes that that there is 

likely no one system that can meet all requirements. This is a “best 

value” RFP, looking for the integrated solution that provides the best 

combination of technical quality, price, and other evaluation 

criteria."

43 Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this? Yes. 

44 Whether we need to come over there for meetings? Yes

45 Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA?
tasks, and implemantation must be completed at CTDOT



46 Can we submit the proposals via email?
proposals must be submitted using our online Biznet 

Portal


